



## BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM REPORT

Requested Board Meeting Date: 9/20/2022

\*= Mandatory, information must be provided

Click or tap the boxes to enter text. If not applicable, indicate "N/A".

**\*Title:**

Proposed change to Personnel Policy 8-102, Premium Pay

**\*Introduction/Background:**

Addition of language to clarify that holiday benefit is available to an eligible employee who is in a paid status on their work day before and their work day after a holiday.

**\*Discussion:**

The proposed language will ensure that holiday benefit is available only to an employee who is either actively working or otherwise on an approved leave/utilizing their own accruals.

**\*Conclusion:**

Modify language in Personnel Policy 8-102: Where applicable, edits to gender-neutral language.  
Modify language in Personnel Policy 8-102(F)(5) to add that holiday benefit is subject to Paragraph F(8).  
Modify language in Personnel Policy 8-102(F)(6) to add that holiday benefit is subject to Paragraph F(8).  
Modify language in Personnel Policy 8-102(F)(8) to require an employee to be in a paid status on their regularly scheduled work day before and their regularly scheduled work day after a holiday, in order to receive the holiday benefit.

**\*Recommendation:**

The Board of Supervisors approve the modification to Personnel Policy 8-102 as outlined, effective upon adoption.

**\*Fiscal Impact:**

None.

**\*Board of Supervisor District:**

☐ 1 ☐ 2 ☐ 3 ☐ 4 ☐ 5 ☒ All

Department: Human Resources

Telephone: 520-724-8028

Contact: Cathy Bohland

Telephone: 520-724-8672

Department Director Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: 9/18/2022

Deputy County Administrator Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_

County Administrator Signature: \_\_\_\_\_

Date: 9/15/2022

September 20, 2022

Summary of Revisions  
*Personnel Policy 8-102*  
**PREMIUM PAY**

**Significant Changes**

1) Revised Language in Following Section:

(F)(8)                      Added language to require an employee to be in a paid status on their regularly scheduled work day before a holiday and their regularly scheduled work day after a holiday, in order to receive the holiday benefit.

Reason for the Change:    Ensures that holiday benefit is available only to an employee who is either actively working or otherwise on an approved leave/utilizing their own accruals.

A. Definitions

1. "Premium pay" means compensation in addition to an employee's normal pay and includes the following: overtime pay, compensatory time, callback pay, on-call pay, holiday pay, shift differential pay, special assignment pay, and multilingual compensation.
2. "Overtime" means time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per work week, unless a different definition is required by law.
3. "Compensatory time" means earned time recorded on an employee's pay record in lieu of overtime pay.
4. "Holiday benefit" means up to eight (8) hours paid compensation for time off in recognition of each County holiday.
5. "Multilingual compensation" means additional pay given to an eligible employee for providing sign language or non-English language services.

B. Exclusions from Premium Pay

The following are not eligible for premium pay except that an Appointing Authority shall receive the holiday benefit as provided herein.

1. Elected Officials;
2. Appointing Authorities; and
3. Anyone who is not an employee on County payroll.

C. Overtime

1. An employee eligible for overtime shall be compensated for overtime hours worked by either one of the following methods, at the discretion of the Appointing Authority:
  - a. By payment at one and one-half (1½) times the employee's current hourly rate;
  - b. By compensatory time at a rate of one and one half (1½) hours off for each hour of overtime worked and not paid.

2. The following are not eligible for overtime:
  - a. Elected Officials;
  - b. Members of the personal staff of Elected Officials;
  - c. Persons appointed by Elected Officials to serve on a policy-making Board or Commission;
  - d. Advisors to Elected Officials with respect to the constitutional or legal powers of their office;
  - e. Employees classified as Executive (E), Administrative (A), or Professional (P), under the Fair Labor Standards Act, except those (E, A, or P) employees designated as eligible for overtime under the County's classification system.
3. Employees shall work overtime only when authorized by the Appointing Authority or designee. Overtime shall be allocated as evenly as possible among all employees qualified to do the work. While preference may be given to those employees who wish to volunteer for the work, all employees are required to work overtime when requested to do so.
4. Compensatory time shall not accumulate in excess of one hundred twenty (120) hours. An employee eligible for overtime who has one hundred twenty (120) hours of accrued compensatory time is to be paid for future authorized overtime worked. If compensatory time is accrued, it cannot be converted back to pay except as provided in the termination policy or other directive from the Board of Supervisors. The Appointing Authority shall establish procedures for timely usage of compensatory time accrued.
5. An employee who changes from one employment type to another shall retain any accumulated compensatory time, except as noted below, and shall be eligible to use and/or accrue compensatory time in accordance with ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** current employment type. An employee who changes status from a non-exempt employee to an exempt employee or who transfers from one County department to another shall be paid for any accumulated compensatory time at the current hourly rate in effect at the time of the transfer or vacating of the non-exempt position. An employee who is in a detail assignment to an exempt classification at the time shall be paid for accumulated compensatory time at the hourly rate held prior to the detail assignment.

**D. Callback Pay**

An employee eligible for overtime compensation shall be eligible to receive callback pay. An eligible employee who has left a place of work and is called back to work before ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** next regularly scheduled work shift shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours of pay if reporting back to the worksite. Callback pay applies in emergency circumstances only. The callback period shall begin when the employee is notified to return to work. Intermittent employees, as defined in Merit System Rule 1, are not eligible to receive callback pay.

1. The employee must report as soon as possible to the worksite. The callback period ends when the employee completes the job assignment. If the employee's private car is used for transportation in a callback situation, mileage shall be paid at the approved rate. Callbacks shall be allocated as evenly as possible among all employees qualified to do the work. All employees are required to work if called back.
2. If the employee is able to resolve the problem by telephone and is not required to report to the worksite, he/she shall receive pay for the actual time spent in problem resolution.

**E. On-Call Pay**

An employee eligible for overtime compensation shall be eligible to receive on-call pay. The eligible employee shall be designated by the Appointing Authority to be on call and available for immediate contact for a specific period of time and particular purpose. Being available for immediate contact does not constitute on call unless the employee has been designated on call as above. On-call pay shall be paid at the rate of one dollar and thirty cents (\$1.30) per hour of on-call duty. On-call pay may not be coincident with any other pay except for paid holidays.

Location of the employee for on-call duty shall be at the employee's discretion, with the stipulation that immediate contact can be made and that the employee must be able to report fit for duty within one (1) hour, unless other conditions require a shorter period. On-call duty shall be allocated as evenly as possible among all employees qualified to do the work. All employees are required to be on call when requested. Intermittent employees, as defined in Merit System Rule 1, are not eligible to receive on-call pay.

F. Holidays

1. Pima County recognizes the following actual holidays:

(1)	January 1	New Year's Day
(2)	Third Monday in January	Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
(3)	Third Monday in February	Presidents' Day
(4)	Last Monday in May	Memorial Day
(5)	July 4	Independence Day
(6)	First Monday in September	Labor Day
(7)	November 11	Veterans' Day
(8)	Fourth Thursday in November	Thanksgiving Day
(9)	Friday after the Fourth Thursday in November	
(10)	December 25	Christmas Day

County offices shall be closed on each of the ten (10) actual holidays listed above. If actual holidays 1, 5, 7, or 10 fall on a Sunday, the holiday shall be designated as observed for pay purposes on the following Monday. If actual holidays 1, 5, 7, or 10 fall on a Saturday, the holiday shall be designated as observed for pay purposes on the preceding Friday.

2. If possible, employees eligible for the holiday benefit, including temporary employees, shall be given time off with pay for each recognized holiday, either on the day the holiday is observed or within the work week in which the holiday falls. Full-time employees shall receive no more than eight (8) hours of time off. Variable-time, part-time employees and employees on reduced schedule leave under ADA shall receive a prorated amount of time off based on their work schedule. For non-exempt employees, holiday benefit hours are paid based on their work schedule. Exempt employees will receive their regular salary for a pay period in which the holiday falls. Intermittent employees, as defined in Merit System Rule 1, are not eligible for the holiday benefit, but may receive holiday pay.
3. If a non-exempt employee eligible for the holiday benefit is required to work on a holiday, and the department is unable to give the employee holiday benefit time off within the work week, the employee shall receive the pay he/she would have received for the holiday benefit plus the following holiday pay:

Actual or Observed Holiday - 1½ times regular pay rate for time worked, minimum two (2) hours.

If a non-exempt employee eligible for the holiday benefit is required to work on a holiday, and the employee receives the holiday benefit time off within the work week, he/she shall receive holiday pay for holiday hours worked. At the discretion of the Appointing Authority, the employee may be granted annual leave or compensatory time off and still remain eligible to receive holiday pay for holiday hours worked.

If an exempt employee eligible for the holiday benefit is required to work on a holiday, and the department is unable to give the employee holiday benefit time off, the employee shall receive the pay ~~his/her~~ **THEY** would have received for the holiday benefit and he/she shall be credited, in the form of straight-time compensatory time, with the number of hours worked on the holiday, not to exceed eight (8) hours.

4. Holiday Benefit & Workers' Compensation

- a. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who elects to use annual leave, sick leave, or compensatory time to supplement workers' compensation benefits, shall receive as holiday benefit the equivalent to the daily amount of compensatory time or leave banks utilized to supplement worker's compensation benefits.
- b. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who works modified duty and is also compensated by workers' compensation benefits, shall receive the holiday benefit based on ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** work schedule.

5. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who is on an approved medical leave of absence without pay, and who chooses to use ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** accrued sick or annual leave, or compensatory time, in conjunction with leave without pay, shall receive the holiday benefit based on ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** work schedule, **SUBJECT TO PARAGRAPH F(8) BELOW**. Unpaid hours will not be calculated nor applied for these purposes.

6. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who is on an approved leave of absence under the Family and Medical Leave Act, and who is using ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** accrued sick or annual leave, or compensatory time, in conjunction with leave without pay, shall receive the holiday benefit based on ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** work schedule, **SUBJECT TO PARAGRAPH F(8) BELOW**. Unpaid hours will not be calculated nor applied for these purposes.

7. Holiday Benefit & Short Term Disability

- a. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who elects to use annual leave, sick leave, or compensatory time to supplement short term disability leave, shall receive as holiday benefit the equivalent to the daily amount of compensatory time or leave banks utilized to supplement short term disability leave.

- b. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who works a reduced schedule and is also compensated by short term disability benefits, shall receive the holiday benefit based on ~~his/her~~ **THEIR** work schedule.

**8. THE ABOVE PROVISIONS NOTWITHSTANDING, AN EMPLOYEE MUST BE IN A PAID STATUS ON BOTH THEIR REGULARLY SCHEDULED WORK DAY BEFORE AND THEIR REGULARLY SCHEDULED WORK DAY AFTER A HOLIDAY IN ORDER TO RECEIVE THE HOLIDAY BENEFIT.**

**G. Shift Differential Pay**

Qualifying departments are listed on Attachment I to this policy.

**1. Definitions**

- a. "Evening shift" means a work shift in which more than half of the hours worked fall between 5 p.m. and midnight.
- b. "Night shift" means a work shift in which more than half of the hours worked fall between midnight and 8 a.m.

2. A non-exempt employee, as established by Merit System Rule 1, who works an evening or night shift as defined in G.1, shall receive shift differential pay of sixty cents (\$0.60) per hour for evening shift and sixty-five cents (\$0.65) per hour for night shift, in addition to the current hourly rate for each hour worked on the shift. Eligible employees shall receive shift differential pay for all hours worked on the shift as defined in G.1 above.

3. Only eligible employees who are actually working or using their own sick leave accruals (i.e., not using annual leave, compensatory time, any type of paid leave, or receiving holiday benefit) are eligible for shift differential pay.

**H. Special Assignment Pay**

Additional compensation may be authorized by the Board of Supervisors for certain employees who perform hazardous duty (duty which imperils or endangers an employee), or other duty under special circumstances. The Appointing Authority shall annually submit a request to the County Administrator with justification for the special assignment pay no later than July 1.

**I. Multilingual Compensation**

1. An employee may receive additional pay for providing sign language or non-English language services if the employee's duties require multilingual capability.



Qualification and eligibility requirements for multilingual compensation are set out by administrative procedures.

2. Multilingual pay is subject to rescission at any time. Rescission of multilingual pay does not constitute a disciplinary reduction in pay and is not grievable or appealable.
3. Only eligible employees who are actually working or using their own sick leave accruals (i.e., not using annual leave, compensatory time, any type of paid leave, or receiving holiday benefit) are eligible for multilingual pay.

J. Attachment(s)

Changes may be made to attachment(s) to this policy by Human Resources, with County Administrator approval.

ATTACHMENT I, Pima County Personnel Policy 8-102

Departments with Evening & Night Shifts

County Attorney's Office (Criminal Division Legal Processing Support Unit)  
Facilities Management  
Information Technology  
Justice Court Ajo  
Justice Court Green Valley  
Justice Court Tucson  
Library  
Medical Examiner  
Pima Animal Care Center  
Regional Wastewater Reclamation  
Sheriff  
Transportation

A. Definitions

1. "Premium pay" means compensation in addition to an employee's normal pay and includes the following: overtime pay, compensatory time, callback pay, on-call pay, holiday pay, shift differential pay, special assignment pay, and multilingual compensation.
2. "Overtime" means time worked in excess of forty (40) hours per work week, unless a different definition is required by law.
3. "Compensatory time" means earned time recorded on an employee's pay record in lieu of overtime pay.
4. "Holiday benefit" means up to eight (8) hours paid compensation for time off in recognition of each County holiday.
5. "Multilingual compensation" means additional pay given to an eligible employee for providing sign language or non-English language services.

B. Exclusions from Premium Pay

The following are not eligible for premium pay except that an Appointing Authority shall receive the holiday benefit as provided herein.

1. Elected Officials;
2. Appointing Authorities; and
3. Anyone who is not an employee on County payroll.

C. Overtime

1. An employee eligible for overtime shall be compensated for overtime hours worked by either one of the following methods, at the discretion of the Appointing Authority:
  - a. By payment at one and one-half (1½) times the employee's current hourly rate;
  - b. By compensatory time at a rate of one and one half (1½) hours off for each hour of overtime worked and not paid.

2. The following are not eligible for overtime:
  - a. Elected Officials;
  - b. Members of the personal staff of Elected Officials;
  - c. Persons appointed by Elected Officials to serve on a policy-making Board or Commission;
  - d. Advisors to Elected Officials with respect to the constitutional or legal powers of their office;
  - e. Employees classified as Executive (E), Administrative (A), or Professional (P), under the Fair Labor Standards Act, except those (E, A, or P) employees designated as eligible for overtime under the County's classification system.
3. Employees shall work overtime only when authorized by the Appointing Authority or designee. Overtime shall be allocated as evenly as possible among all employees qualified to do the work. While preference may be given to those employees who wish to volunteer for the work, all employees are required to work overtime when requested to do so.
4. Compensatory time shall not accumulate in excess of one hundred twenty (120) hours. An employee eligible for overtime who has one hundred twenty (120) hours of accrued compensatory time is to be paid for future authorized overtime worked. If compensatory time is accrued, it cannot be converted back to pay except as provided in the termination policy or other directive from the Board of Supervisors. The Appointing Authority shall establish procedures for timely usage of compensatory time accrued.
5. An employee who changes from one employment type to another shall retain any accumulated compensatory time, except as noted below, and shall be eligible to use and/or accrue compensatory time in accordance with their current employment type. An employee who changes status from a non-exempt employee to an exempt employee or who transfers from one County department to another shall be paid for any accumulated compensatory time at the current hourly rate in effect at the time of the transfer or vacating of the non-exempt position. An employee who is in a detail assignment to an exempt classification at the time shall be paid for accumulated compensatory time at the hourly rate held prior to the detail assignment.

D. Callback Pay

An employee eligible for overtime compensation shall be eligible to receive callback pay. An eligible employee who has left a place of work and is called back to work before their next regularly scheduled work shift shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours of pay if reporting back to the worksite. Callback pay applies in emergency circumstances only. The callback period shall begin when the employee is notified to return to work. Intermittent employees, as defined in Merit System Rule 1, are not eligible to receive callback pay.

1. The employee must report as soon as possible to the worksite. The callback period ends when the employee completes the job assignment. If the employee's private car is used for transportation in a callback situation, mileage shall be paid at the approved rate. Callbacks shall be allocated as evenly as possible among all employees qualified to do the work. All employees are required to work if called back.
2. If the employee is able to resolve the problem by telephone and is not required to report to the worksite, he/she shall receive pay for the actual time spent in problem resolution.

E. On-Call Pay

An employee eligible for overtime compensation shall be eligible to receive on-call pay. The eligible employee shall be designated by the Appointing Authority to be on call and available for immediate contact for a specific period of time and particular purpose. Being available for immediate contact does not constitute on call unless the employee has been designated on call as above. On-call pay shall be paid at the rate of one dollar and thirty cents (\$1.30) per hour of on-call duty. On-call pay may not be coincident with any other pay except for paid holidays.

Location of the employee for on-call duty shall be at the employee's discretion, with the stipulation that immediate contact can be made and that the employee must be able to report fit for duty within one (1) hour, unless other conditions require a shorter period. On-call duty shall be allocated as evenly as possible among all employees qualified to do the work. All employees are required to be on call when requested. Intermittent employees, as defined in Merit System Rule 1, are not eligible to receive on-call pay.

F. Holidays

1. Pima County recognizes the following actual holidays:

(1)	January 1	New Year's Day
(2)	Third Monday in January	Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
(3)	Third Monday in February	Presidents' Day
(4)	Last Monday in May	Memorial Day
(5)	July 4	Independence Day
(6)	First Monday in September	Labor Day
(7)	November 11	Veterans' Day
(8)	Fourth Thursday in November	Thanksgiving Day
(9)	Friday after the Fourth Thursday in November	
(10)	December 25	Christmas Day

County offices shall be closed on each of the ten (10) actual holidays listed above. If actual holidays 1, 5, 7, or 10 fall on a Sunday, the holiday shall be designated as observed for pay purposes on the following Monday. If actual holidays 1, 5, 7, or 10 fall on a Saturday, the holiday shall be designated as observed for pay purposes on the preceding Friday.

2. If possible, employees eligible for the holiday benefit, including temporary employees, shall be given time off with pay for each recognized holiday, either on the day the holiday is observed or within the work week in which the holiday falls. Full-time employees shall receive no more than eight (8) hours of time off. Variable-time, part-time employees and employees on reduced schedule leave under ADA shall receive a prorated amount of time off based on their work schedule. For non-exempt employees, holiday benefit hours are paid based on their work schedule. Exempt employees will receive their regular salary for a pay period in which the holiday falls. Intermittent employees, as defined in Merit System Rule 1, are not eligible for the holiday benefit, but may receive holiday pay.
3. If a non-exempt employee eligible for the holiday benefit is required to work on a holiday, and the department is unable to give the employee holiday benefit time off within the work week, the employee shall receive the pay he/she would have received for the holiday benefit plus the following holiday pay:

Actual or Observed Holiday - 1½ times regular pay rate for time worked, minimum two (2) hours.

If a non-exempt employee eligible for the holiday benefit is required to work on a holiday, and the employee receives the holiday benefit time off within the work week, he/she shall receive holiday pay for holiday hours worked. At the discretion of the Appointing Authority, the employee may be granted annual leave or compensatory time off and still remain eligible to receive holiday pay for holiday hours worked.

If an exempt employee eligible for the holiday benefit is required to work on a holiday, and the department is unable to give the employee holiday benefit time off, the employee shall receive the pay they would have received for the holiday benefit and he/she shall be credited, in the form of straight-time compensatory time, with the number of hours worked on the holiday, not to exceed eight (8) hours.

4. Holiday Benefit & Workers' Compensation

- a. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who elects to use annual leave, sick leave, or compensatory time to supplement workers' compensation benefits, shall receive as holiday benefit the equivalent to the daily amount of compensatory time or leave banks utilized to supplement worker's compensation benefits.
- b. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who works modified duty and is also compensated by workers' compensation benefits, shall receive the holiday benefit based on their work schedule.

5. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who is on an approved medical leave of absence without pay, and who chooses to use their accrued sick or annual leave, or compensatory time, in conjunction with leave without pay, shall receive the holiday benefit based on their work schedule, subject to Paragraph F(8) below. Unpaid hours will not be calculated nor applied for these purposes.

6. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who is on an approved leave of absence under the Family and Medical Leave Act, and who is using their accrued sick or annual leave, or compensatory time, in conjunction with leave without pay, shall receive the holiday benefit based on their work schedule, subject to Paragraph F(8) below. Unpaid hours will not be calculated nor applied for these purposes.

7. Holiday Benefit & Short Term Disability

- a. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who elects to use annual leave, sick leave, or compensatory time to supplement short term disability leave, shall receive as holiday benefit the equivalent to the daily amount of compensatory time or leave banks utilized to supplement short term disability leave.

- b. An employee eligible for the holiday benefit, who works a reduced schedule and is also compensated by short term disability benefits, shall receive the holiday benefit based on their work schedule.
- 8. The above provisions notwithstanding, an employee must be in a paid status on both their regularly scheduled work day before and their regularly scheduled work day after a holiday in order to receive the holiday benefit.

G. Shift Differential Pay

Qualifying departments are listed on Attachment I to this policy.

- 1. Definitions
  - a. "Evening shift" means a work shift in which more than half of the hours worked fall between 5 p.m. and midnight.
  - b. "Night shift" means a work shift in which more than half of the hours worked fall between midnight and 8 a.m.
- 2. A non-exempt employee, as established by Merit System Rule 1, who works an evening or night shift as defined in G.1, shall receive shift differential pay of sixty cents (\$0.60) per hour for evening shift and sixty-five cents (\$0.65) per hour for night shift, in addition to the current hourly rate for each hour worked on the shift. Eligible employees shall receive shift differential pay for all hours worked on the shift as defined in G.1 above.
- 3. Only eligible employees who are actually working or using their own sick leave accruals (i.e., not using annual leave, compensatory time, any type of paid leave, or receiving holiday benefit) are eligible for shift differential pay.

H. Special Assignment Pay

Additional compensation may be authorized by the Board of Supervisors for certain employees who perform hazardous duty (duty which imperils or endangers an employee), or other duty under special circumstances. The Appointing Authority shall annually submit a request to the County Administrator with justification for the special assignment pay no later than July 1.

I. Multilingual Compensation

- 1. An employee may receive additional pay for providing sign language or non-English language services if the employee's duties require multilingual capability.

Qualification and eligibility requirements for multilingual compensation are set out by administrative procedures.



2. Multilingual pay is subject to rescission at any time. Rescission of multilingual pay does not constitute a disciplinary reduction in pay and is not grievable or appealable.
3. Only eligible employees who are actually working or using their own sick leave accruals (i.e., not using annual leave, compensatory time, any type of paid leave, or receiving holiday benefit) are eligible for multilingual pay.

J. Attachment(s)

Changes may be made to attachment(s) to this policy by Human Resources, with County Administrator approval.

ATTACHMENT I, Pima County Personnel Policy 8-102

Departments with Evening & Night Shifts

County Attorney's Office (Criminal Division Legal Processing Support Unit)  
Facilities Management  
Information Technology  
Justice Court Ajo  
Justice Court Green Valley  
Justice Court Tucson  
Library  
Medical Examiner  
Pima Animal Care Center  
Regional Wastewater Reclamation  
Sheriff  
Transportation